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FISCHER HOUSE

GERMAN IMMIGRANT JOHN HEINRICH FISCHER
BUILT THIS LOG CABIN ABOUT 1860 ON LAND
HE PURCHASED FROM AUGUST FORCKE. HE
AND HIS WIFE, AUGUSTE (KOCH), REARED
THEIR FAMILY HERE UNTIL SELLING THE
CABIN TO THEIR DAUGHTER ANNA [N 1881.
BUILT OF HAND-HEWN CEDAR AND LIMESTONE,
THE FISCHER HOUSE INCLUDES A FRONT
SHED ROOF PORCH AND REAR SHED ROOF
KITCHEN. THE ORIGINAL DOG TROT (OPEN
HALLWAY THROUGH THE CENTER OF THE HOUSE)
WAS ENCLOSED IN THE MID-20TH CENTURY.

A SCARCE EXAMPLE OF AN EARLY LOG CABIN
ON ITS ORIGINAL SITE, THE FISCHER HOUSE

IS A REMINDER OF TEXAS’ GERMAN HERITAGE.
RECORDED TEXAS HISTORIC LANDMARK — 2000
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The Springs at Rebecca Creek

230 Cypress Springs Dr
Spring Branch, Texas

230 Cypress Springs Drive is a hand hewn, cedar log, 2 story home built in the
architectural style commonly called a “dogtrot”. It includes seven acres which sits at the
mouth of the springs at Rebecca Creek, and is part of the original Survey No. 57 of 320
acres made for Joseph Baker being the quantity of land he was entitled to by virtue of
Bounty Land Certificate No. 3440 issued by the Sec. of War at Houston on the 18% of

May 1838. (1)

Joseph Baker came to Texas from Maine in 1831. He lived in San Felipe de Austin from
1831 to 1836 where he served as the Secretary of the Ayuntamiento of San Felipe de
Austin. His knowledge of the Spanish language along with his handling of all records and
information coming from Mexico gave him insight into the true state of affairs and
rendered him one of the best informed men in the colony on the Texas-Mexican situation.
Joseph Baker’s interests were closely allied with those seeking independence and he
e
corresponded frequently with such leaders as Gen. Sam Houston, Stexen Austin, and

Mosely Baker. Joseph Baker held the position of Secretary of the Ayuntamiento until

November 13, 1835, when the Texas provisional government was formed. (2)

Shortly before this, Joseph Baker had turned to another means of helping the cause

of Texas, which at the time proved to be one of the strongest possible assets in the
Ao
hands of Steven Austin for getting before the people of Texas the true state of affairs with



Mexico. This was the establishment of the first newspaper in Texas, the Telegraph and
Texas Register. First published October 10, 1835, it was through this newspaper and its

assistance to the cause of Texas that Joseph Baker has been best known in Texas. (3)

On January 15, 1836, Joseph Baker was unanimously elected, under the provisional
government, second judge of the municipality of Austin. This position placed Baker in
close contact with all affairs of the military, since one of the duties of the office was to
oversee the election of the militia within the municipality. On February 27, 1836, a letter
was received from Col. Travis, who was besieged in the Alamo. Judge Baker was
unanimously called to chair the meeting with the citizens of San Felipe de Austin, and
resolutions were drawn up and sent throughout Texas, that Travis’ plight would be
learned and assistance sent (4). That a man of force and leadership would be put in
charge of such a meeting stands as proof of the vigor of the man as well as of the esteem

and trust in which he was held by his fellow citizens.

On February 29, 1836 Baker joined the Texan Army, and closed down the newspaper on
April 5, 1836 (5). Serving as First Sergeant in Company D, First Regiment Texas
Volunteers, under Captain Mosely Baker, Joseph Baker fought at the battle of San Jacinto
on the 21% of April where Santa Anna was captured (6). Joseph Baker was discharged on

June 1, 1836.

That Joseph Baker had a part in the founding of the government of the new
Republic is evidenced by the fact that on October 3, 1836, when the first session of the

first Congress convened at Columbia, Judge Joseph Baker, serving as primary judge for



the county of Austin, was called in to qualify the speaker of the House and to administer
the oath of office (7). Among the acts of this first Congress was to appointed Joseph

Baker as Chief Judge of Bexar County(8).

On September 20, 1837 Baker was elected to serve in Austin as a Representative for

Bexar County (9).

On March 4, 1838, a party of 150 Comanche warriors appeared in Bexar county, stating
that several of their principal chiefs were encamped 250 miles from San Antonio. The
Houston Telegraph and the Matagorda Bulletin reported at the time that two
commissioners accompanied the Indians back to their camps to negotiate a treaty. Joseph
Baker was one of these commissioners who met with fifteen of the Indian chiefs who

were seeking a treaty, which was finally arranged in October 9, 1844(10).

On June 10, 1846, the Texas Democrat published the account of an approximately 13
year old Mexican boy who had escaped from the Indians after 4 years of capture. Judge
Baker took the boy in, was able to interpret his story, and cared for him in Austin until
they could arrange to return him to his mother in San Antonio. The boy reported being
held at the Indian camp, but out of sight, when Joseph Baker was there negotiating with

the Indians Chiefs in 1844(11). -

Joseph Baker, a bachelor, suddenly died on July 11, 1846 at the age of 42 (12). He had _
been working in Austin as a Spanish translator, and most likely succumbed to yellow
fever or one of the other plagues that was sweeping through Texas at the time(13). He is

buried in Austin in the Oakwood Cemetery, where the state of Texas has placed a



monument at his grave(14).

There is no evidence that Joseph Baker ever utilized the land now situated at the Springs
of Rebecca Creek. Yet this land he received by virtue of a Bounty Land Certificate, for
his service in the military for the independence of Texas, remains as a tribute of his

loyalty and devotion to his country and state.

Joseph Baker’s estate was administered by Jacob DeCordova (15). Texas land agent,
colonizer, author, cartographer, and member of the Texas House of Representatives,
DeCordova played an influential role in the development of Texas. Sam Houston praised
DeCordova and his 1849 map of Texas on the floor of the United States Senate(16).
Several places in Texas are named after Jacob DeCordova, and Rebecca Creek, which

runs through the subject property, is named after Jacob’s wife, Rebecca (17).

On June 3, 1847, at a public auction in Houston, DeCordova sold the Joseph Baker
property for $40.08 to John Hazeldantz (18). In 1852 John Hazeldantz died(19), and
Michael Hazeldantz married Johns widow Elizabeth (20). The Hazeldantz family owned
a separate 10 acres with a home, and in the 1860 census they listed their occupation

as farmers (21). There is no evidence that they used the subject property other than for

farming. o

On the 21* of January, 1853, Michael Hazeldantz sold the subject property to Dr. Felix
Bracht for the sum of $340 (22). Dr. Bracht was active in New Braunfels and state
politics and became advocate for secession. When Texans voted to secede, Dr. Bracht

became an agent for the Confederacy, and later appointed Regimental Doctor for the



army stationed on the Rio Grande (23). Dr . Bracht and his wife are listed in the 1860
census for Comal County. They are referred to several times by Elise Wuppermann in

her diary, who visited the Bracht family in New Braunfels in the 1850°s(24).

In April of 1857, a J. Heinrich Fischer, recorded a cattle brand “F”, and indicated he

lived at Rebecca Creek(25). Dr. Bracht may have been leasing the property to Fischer.

Dr.Bracht sold the subject property to August Forcke, for $350, on July 1, 1857 (26).
August Forcke is listed as a Druggist by profession and a resident of New Braunfels in

each Comal County Census from 1850 through 1900.

J. Heinrich Fischer, who had apparently been running his cattle at Rebecca Creek, made a
change of his cattle brand, to “F1” on May 10% 1860. Again he listed his address as

Rebecca Creek(27).

August Forcke sold the property to J. Heinrich Fischer for $450 on.May 31,1860 (28).

John Heinrich Fischer had married Auguste Koch on January 18, 1857(29). John is listed
in the 1860 Comal County Census as being 28 years of age and Auguste 19 years of age.
His Birthplace was Hanover, Germany and hers was Laxe Altenburg. They had a one
year old daughter named Bertha, and a three month old daughter named Anna. Also
living with them was Auguste’s 9 year old sister, Emma Koch. John Heinrich Fiscl-;r’s
occupation is listed as a woodworker, or Joiner(30). By the 1870 census they had added
to their family an 8 year old son, Heinrich, (Henry as he was later called), a 5 year old

daughter, Auguste, and a 2 year old daughter, Emma.

Henry Fischer claimed to have been born at Rebecca Creek on the 26% of June, 1861, and



it was noted as such when he died in 1918 (31).

Anna Fischer married William Klinger of Blanco , who was born on January 19, 1855 of
Michael and Dorothea Klinger(32). No record can be found of Anna and William’s

Marriage, athough the 1880 census of Blanco County shows them married at that time.

William and Anna Klinger purchased the subject property from her father, J. Heinrich

Fischer, on December 26, 1881 for $950 (33). They had 5 children: Emil, born February
27, 1881; Albert, born January 18, 1883; Edward, born December 16, 1891; Emst, born

April 16, 1894; and Frieda, born September 12, 1896 (34).

William and Anna lived in the home until 1886 when they sold it to Julius and Mary
Vogel for $1300(35). Subsequent owners of interest were Ludwig and Louise Haag in

1887, and H.G. and Inez Henne in 1925.

Emnst Klinger, son of William and Anna, married Frieda Koch and they had two sons,
Gilbert and Leroy. Leroy Klinger survives today and lives in Cibolo, Texas. Leroy
remembers as a small boy visiting the home where his grandmother, Anna Klinger, had
lived both as a young girl and as a married woman. He especially remembers the Rebecca
Creek, a large cable that ran from the top of a large cypress tree to the cliff on the other
side of the creek, and the stories of how a liquor still was once operated at the spring. The
cable was used to run “evidence” across the creek when law enforcement or unknown
persons approached. Leroy has recently revisited the site and has identified the cable,
now hanging down from the top of the tree. Leroy Klinger has two surviving cousins,

Dick Knoll of Blanco and Roland Knoll of Boerne. As young boys they lived in the



vacinity and remember well the property, the creek and especially the spring. They also
remember the whiskey still operating at the spring, with the large steel cable running

across to the ravine from the top of the large cypress tree.

Albert Klinger, another son of William and Anna Klinger, married Marion

Smith and they had a son, Marvin. Marvin married Jewel Simms, who survives today and
lives in Leander, Tx. In the spring of 1940, while on their honeymoon, they came out to
Spring Branch to meet Marvin’s father, Albert Klinger. During that trip they had the
opportunity to visit the log home where Albert said he was born. Jewel Klinger re-visited
the home in November of 1998 and she recalled how in 1940 the home had no electricity,
running water consisted of one hose that came up to the porch from the spring at Rebecca
Creek under pressure from a hydraulic ram, and toilet facilities that consisted of a “two

holer” outhouse.

Given the facts on when J. Heinrich Fischer registered his cattle brands, his listed place
of residence at that time, his listed occupation as Joiner (woodworker), the known
birthplace of one of his children, and surviving family remembrances, it is most likely
that Fischer built the home that remains today. The evidence also suggests that the home

was probably built just before or shortly after he purchased the property in May of #860.

Few modifications have been made to the home over the years'. The limestone foundation
is still intact. The original floorplan and bearing walls have not been altered, except that
the dogtrot has been walled off at both ends creating a center room. The aged 33911;

logs still show the marks of being hand hewn with an axe. The half dovetail joints fit so



tight that one cannot slip a piece of paper between them. Although someone has re-
chinked the logs with mortar, several places have been preserved that show the original
mud and straw chinking. The original steep, unboxed stairs still lead up from the central
passageway. The second story floor joists are mortised into the wall logs with the butt
ends visible outside. The rafters are still held at the top by wooden pegs. The second story
retains its wide, random planked flooring with some of the boards 18” wide. At some
time after Jewel Klinger visited the home in the 1939, someone walled in the back porch
with hand cut stone, creating room for a plumbed bathroom and kitchen. It was at this
time that the dogtrot was probab!y_ closed in. Few of these old log homes remain without

some remodeling or upgrading, and this home has not suffered much from such work.

Built by an expert crafisman, the residence remains a tribute to the lost art of fine German

log home building in Texas.

It should be noted, unfortunately, that after several years of research no early photograph

of the home can be located. ~¥ Noke: [/G29 [7)'0'/06 'l,%wnd.

The significance of Rebecca Creek should not be overlooked in its importance to the
original 320 acres. Today the spring runs at 8,730 gallons per hour, keeping Rebecca
Creek full of water year round (36). Rebecca Creek was an important asset in the area
development of ranching and farming, and was surely a reason this land was chosen by

both Joseph Baker and J. Heinrich Fischer .
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